
City of Kelowna
Regular Council Meeting

AGENDA
 

Tuesday, July 29, 2014

6:00 pm

Council Chamber

City Hall, 1435 Water Street

Pages

1. Call to Order

2. Prayer

A Prayer will be offered by Councillor DeHart.

3. Confirmation of Minutes 1 - 16

Public Hearing - July 15, 2014
Regular Meeting - July 15, 2014

4. Bylaws Considered at Public Hearing

4.1 Bylaw No. 10979 (Z14-0019) - 260 Ponto Avenue, Alexander Ryan Tull 17 - 17

To give Bylaw No. 10979 second and third readings.

4.2 Bylaw No. 10986 (TA14-0007) - Amendments to Carriage House and Accessory
Building Regulations

18 - 29

To give Bylaw No. 10986 second and third readings.

4.3 Bylaw No. 10875 (OCP11-0011) - 2755 McCurdy Road - PRODEV GP Ltd. &
1378310 Alberta Ltd.

30 - 31

Requires a majority of all members of Council (5).
To give Bylaw No. 10875 second and third readings.

4.4 Bylaw No. 10876 (TA11-0010) - Amendment to City of Kelowna Zoning Bylaw
No. 8000, RHM4 - Hillside Cluster Multiple Cluster Housing Zone

32 - 37

To give Bylaw No. 10876 second and third readings.

4.5 Bylaw No. 10877 (Z11-0069) - 2755 McCurdy Road, PRODEV GP Ltd. & 1378310
Alberta Ltd.

38 - 39

To give Bylaw No. 10877 second and third readings.



4.6 Bylaw No. 10984 (Z13-0030) - (S of), 823 & 890-950 Academy Way, Watermark
Developments Ltd., City of Kelowna & Aberdeen Hall Senior School Society

40 - 43

To give Bylaw No. 10984 second and third readings.

4.7 Bylaw No. 10980 (OCP14-0014) - Amendment to Chapter 4, Future Land Use
for a new Health District (HLTH) Designation

44 - 47

Requires a majority of all members of Council (5).
To give Bylaw No. 10980 second and third readings.

4.8 Bylaw No. 10981 (TA14-0010) - City of Kelowna, Adding a new HD3 - Health
Services Zone to Section 17 - Health District Zone

48 - 52

To give Bylaw No. 10981 second and third readings.

5. Notification of Meeting

The City Clerk will provide information as to how the following items on the Agenda
were publicized.

6. Development Permit and Development Variance Permit Reports

6.1 Development Variance Permit Application No. DVP14-0032 - 552-554 Leon
Avenue, Troika Developments

53 - 67

City Clerk to state for the record any correspondence received.  Mayor to
invite anyone in the public gallery who deems themselves affected by the
required variance(s) to come forward.
To consider a Development Variance Permit to vary the off street parking
regulations to permit the applicant to register remote parking on a property that
is approximately 420m from the development site.

6.2 Bylaw No. 10860 (OCP13-0010) - Various Addresses on Central Avenue, Richter
Street & Cambridge Avenue, Provincial Rental Housing Corporation

68 - 69

Requires a majority of all members of Council (5).
To adopt Bylaw No. 10860 in order to change the future land use designation
of the subject properties from the Multiple Unit Residential - Low Density
designation to the Multiple Unit Residential - Low Density &  Multiple Unit
Residential - Medium Density designations.

6.2.1 Bylaw No. 10861 (Z13-0018) - Various Addresses on Central Avenue,
Richter Street & Cambridge Avenue, Provinical Rental Housing
Corporation

70 - 71

To adopt Bylaw No. 10861 in order to rezone the subject properties
from the RU6 - Two Dwelling Housing and RM2 - Low Density Row
Housing zones to the RM3 - Low Density Multiple Housing and RM5 -
Medium Density Multiple Housing zones.

6.2.2 Development Permit Application No. DP13-0048 & Development 72 - 113



Variance Permit Application No. DVP13-0049 - Various Addresses on
Central Avenue, Richter Street & Cambridge Avenue, Provincial
Rental Housing Corporation

City Clerk to state for the record any correspondence received. 
Mayor to invite anyone in the public gallery who deems
themselves affected by the required variance(s) to come forward.
To consider a Development Permit and Development Variance Permit
for the proposed residential housing project consisting of a 4 storey, 50
unit seniors’ supportive housing apartment building with 20 family
oriented townhouses.

6.3 Temporary Use Permit Application No. TUP14-0003 - 2284 & 2292 Speer
Street, Interior Health & City of Kelowna

114 - 127

City Clerk to state for the record any correspondence received.  Mayor to
invite anyone in the public gallery who deems themselves affected by the
required variance(s) to come forward.
To seek a Temporary Use Permit to allow the vacant residential properties to be
used for Contractor Services, General in support of Kelowna General Hospital
construction projects.

6.4 Bylaw No. 10837 (OCP13-0001) - 1242-1244 Pheasant Street, Geoff & Leanne
Proteau

128 - 128

Requires a majority of all members of Council (5).
To adopt Bylaw No. 10837 in order to change the future land use designation
of the subject property from the Multiple Unit Residential (Medium Density)
designation to the Multiple Unit Residential (Low Density) designation.

6.4.1 Bylaw No. 10838 (Z13-0002) - 1242-1244 Pheasant Street, Geoff &
Leanne Proteau

129 - 129

To adopt Bylaw No. 10838 in order to rezone the subject property
from the RU6 - Two Dwelling Housing zone to the RM1 - Four Dwelling
Housing zone.

6.4.2 Development Variance Permit Application No. DVP13-0003 &
Development Permit Application No. DP13-0002 - 1242-1244 Pheasant
Street, Geoff & Leanne Proteau

130 - 152

City Clerk to state for the record any correspondence received. 
Mayor to invite anyone in the public gallery who deems themselves
affected by the required variance(s) to come forward.
The purpose of the Development Variance Permit is to vary the rear
yard building setback and the off-street parking setback. The purpose
of the Development Permit is review the form and character of a
fourplex located at the subject property.

7. Reminders



8. Termination



1



2



3



4



5



6



7



8



9



10



11



12



13



14



15



16



17



18



19



20



21



22



23



24



25



26



27



28



29



30



31



32



33



34



35



36



37



38



39



40



41



42



43



44



45



46



47



48



49



50



51



52



REPORT TO COUNCIL 
 

Date: 7/29/2014 

RIM No. 1250-30 

To: City Manager 

From: Urban Planning, Community Sustainability (AW) 

Application: DVP14-0032 Owner: 0871089 BC Ltd. 

Address: 552 - 554 Leon Avenue  Applicant: Troika Developments 

Subject: Development Variance Permit Application  

Existing OCP Designation: Mixed-Use (Residential/Commercial) 

Existing Zone: C7 – Central Business Commercial 

 

1.0 Recommendation 

THAT Council authorize the issuance of Development Variance Permit No. DVP14-0032 for Lot A, 
District Lot 139, ODYD, Plan 34415, located at 552 - 554 Leon Ave, Kelowna, B.C., subject to the 
following: 
 

1. Landscaping to be provided on the offsite parking lot be in general accordance with 
Schedule "C". 

 
2. The applicant be required to post with the City a Landscape Performance Security deposit  

in the form of a "Letter of Credit" in the amount of 125% of the estimated value of the 
landscaping, as determined by a professional landscaper; 

 
3. Offsite parking covenant to be registered on the title of 264, 266 & 554 Leon Avenue 

parcels prior to issuance of the Development Variance Permit. 
 

4. Legal Agreement to allow stalls 14-18 to encroach over the property line. 
 

AND THAT the applicant be required to complete the above-noted condition No. 2 within 180 
days of Council approval of the Development Permit application in order for the permit to be 
issued. 
 
AND FURTHER THAT variances to the following sections of Zoning Bylaw No. 8000 be granted: 
 
Section 8.1.10 (a) 
To permit remote offsite parking at a distance in excess of 200m (approximately 420m) from the 
development site where the maximum distance for remote parking is 200m. 

 

53



DVP14-0032 – Page 2 
 

2.0 Purpose  

To consider a Development Variance Permit to vary the off street parking regulations to permit 
the applicant to register remote parking on a property that is approximately 420m from the 
development site. 

3.0 Urban Planning 

A Development Permit was previously approved for the office building currently under 
construction at 552 - 554 Leon Avenue, at the time of issuance the applicant had secured 17 of 
the required parking stalls via covenant at 532 Lawrence Avenue which is within 200m of the 
subject property. The applicant is requesting to move the parking covenant to the property 
located at 264 & 266 Leon Ave. which is approximately 420m from the development site. While 
Staff would prefer to have the remote parking located within the 200m limit, there isn’t 
significant concern with securing the parking in excess of 200m from the development site. The 
proposed parking lot still provides a relatively direct route to the office building which is 
currently under construction. The applicant will be required to bring the parking lot up to current 
standards including adding landscape buffers.  

4.0 Proposal 

4.1 Background & Project Description 

The applicant currently has the required offsite parking stalls secured on the property located at 
532 Lawrence Avenue, this was a requirement of DP issuance. A Development Variance Permit to 
relocate the required offsite parking stalls to 1660 Water Street which is approximately 400m 
from the development site was subsequently approved by Council at the November 19th, 2013 
Meeting. The applicant has since been unable to have the owner register the covenant that is 
required to secure the stalls. The applicant would now like to relocate the 17 offsite parking 
stalls to the properties located at 264 & 266 Leon Avenue.     

Subject Property Map: 264, 266 & 552 - 554 Leon Ave. 

54



DVP14-0032 – Page 3 
 

5.0 Technical Comments  

5.1 Building & Permitting Department 

No Concerns 

5.2 Development Engineering Department 

This development variance permit application to vary the distance to offsite parking from 
200m to 420m does not compromise any municipal services.  

6.0 Application Chronology  

Date of Application Received: February 20th, 2014 
Covenant Provided:   June 24th, 2014  
 

Report prepared by: 

     

Alec Warrender, Urban Planner  
 
 
 

Reviewed by:   Ryan Smith, Urban Planning Manager 
 

Approved Inclusion:  D. Gilchrist, Div. Dir. of Community Planning and Real Estate 

 

Attachments: 

Subject Property Map 
Landscape Plan 
Site Photos 
 

55



56



57



58



59



60



61



62



63



64



65



66



67



68



69



70



71



REPORT TO COUNCIL 
 
 
 

Date: 7/29/2014 

RIM No. 1250-30 

To: City Manager 

From: Urban Planning (AW) 

Application: DP13-0048 / DVP13-0049 Owner: 
Provincial Rental Housing 
Corporation, Inc. No. BC0052129 

Address: 

602-650, 678, 668 Central Avenue 
648-650, 668-670, 680-692  Richter 
Street 
603-607, 609-611, 621-631, 661-663, 
671-673, 681-689, 641 Cambridge 
Avenue 

Applicant: Norr Architects Planners 

Subject: Development Permit & Development Variance Permit Applications  

Existing OCP Designation: MRL - Multiple Unit Residential – Low Density 

Proposed OCP Designation: 
MRL - Multiple Unit Residential – Low Density & 
MRM -  Multiple Unit Residential – Medium Density 

Existing Zones: RU6 – Two Dwelling Housing & RM2 – Low Density Row Housing 

Proposed Zones: RM3 – Low Density Multiple Housing & RM5 – Medium Density Multiple 
Housing 

 

1.0 Recommendation 

THAT Final Adoption of Official Community Plan Amending Bylaw No. 10860 and the Zoning 
Amending Bylaw No. 10861 be considered by Council; 
 
AND THAT Council authorize the issuance of Development Permit No. DP13-0048 for Lot A, 
District Lot 9, ODYD, Plan 13927, located at 602-650 Central Avenue, Lot 1, District Lot 9, ODYD, 
Plan 4317, located at 603-607 Cambridge Avenue, Lot 2, District Lot 9, ODYD, Plan 4317, located 
at 609-611 Cambridge Avenue, Lot 3, District Lot 9, ODYD, Plan 4317, located at 621-631 
Cambridge Avenue, Lot 1, District Lot 9, ODYD, Plan 7822, located at 661-663 Cambridge Avenue, 
Lot 2, District Lot 9, ODYD, Plan 7822, located at 671-673 Cambridge Avenue, Lot 3, District Lot 
9, ODYD, Plan 7822, located at 681-689 Cambridge Avenue, Lot 4, District Lot 9, ODYD, Plan 
7822, located at 648-650 Richter Street, Lot 5, District Lot 9, ODYD, Plan 7822, located at 668-
670 Richter Street, Lot 6, District Lot 9, ODYD, Plan 7822, located at 680-692 Richter Street, Lot 
13, District Lot 9, ODYD, Plan 4317, located at 678 Central Avenue, Lot 4, District Lot 9, ODYD, 
Plan 4317, located at 641 Cambridge Avenue, Lot 14, District Lot 9, ODYD, Plan 4317, located at 
668 Central Avenue, Kelowna B.C., subject to the following: 

72



DP13-0048 / DVP13-0049– Page 2 

 
 

1. The dimensions and siting of the building to be constructed on the land be in general 
accordance with Schedule "A"; 

 
2. The exterior design and finish of the building to be constructed on the land be in general 

accordance with Schedule “B”; 
 

3. Landscaping to be provided on the land be in general accordance with Schedule "C"; 
 

4. The applicant be required to post with the City a Landscape Performance Security deposit 
in the form of a "Letter of Credit" in the amount of 125% of the estimated value of the 
landscaping, as determined by a professional landscaper; 
 

5. Registration of a plan of subdivision at Land Titles Office to consolidate the subject 
properties as shown in Schedule ‘A’ prior to issuance of the Development Permit; 

 
AND THAT the applicant be required to complete the above-noted condition No. 4 within 180 
days of Council approval of the Development Permit application in order for the permit to be 
issued. 
 
AND THAT Council authorize the issuance of Development Variance Permit No. DVP13-0049 for 
Lot A, District Lot 9, ODYD, Plan 13927, located at 602-650 Central Avenue, Lot 1, District Lot 9, 
ODYD, Plan 4317, located at 603-607 Cambridge Avenue, Lot 2, District Lot 9, ODYD, Plan 4317, 
located at 609-611 Cambridge Avenue, Lot 3, District Lot 9, ODYD, Plan 4317, located at 621-631 
Cambridge Avenue, Lot 1, District Lot 9, ODYD, Plan 7822, located at 661-663 Cambridge Avenue, 
Lot 2, District Lot 9, ODYD, Plan 7822, located at 671-673 Cambridge Avenue, Lot 3, District Lot 
9, ODYD, Plan 7822, located at 681-689 Cambridge Avenue, Lot 4, District Lot 9, ODYD, Plan 
7822, located at 648-650 Richter Street, Lot 5, District Lot 9, ODYD, Plan 7822, located at 668-
670 Richter Street, Lot 6, District Lot 9, ODYD, Plan 7822, located at 680-692 Richter Street, Lot 
13, District Lot 9, ODYD, Plan 4317, located at 678 Central Avenue, Lot 4, District Lot 9, ODYD, 
Plan 4317, located at 641 Cambridge Avenue, Lot 14, District Lot 9, ODYD, Plan 4317, located at 
668 Central Avenue, Kelowna, B.C.;  
 
AND THAT variances to the following sections of Zoning Bylaw No. 8000 be granted: 
 
Section 6.4.3 Projections Into Yards 
Vary the permitted entrance canopy projection from 3.0m to 1.8m proposed. 
 
Section 13.11.6 (b) Site Coverage 
Vary the site coverage from 65% permitted to 65.7% proposed for buildings, driveways and 
parking areas. 

2.0 Purpose  

To consider a Development Permit and Development Variance Permit for the proposed residential 
housing project consisting of a 4 storey, 50 unit seniors’ supportive housing apartment building 
with 20 family oriented townhouses. 

3.0 Urban Planning 

The applicant undertook a well organized public consultation process in order to engage the 
neighbourhood and shape the project in a manner that best suited the surrounding context. The 

73



DP13-0048 / DVP13-0049– Page 3 

 
 

main outcome was how to appropriately deal with the additional height introduced into the 
neighbourhood by the seniors apartment building. This process resulted in a proposal that has 
successfully placed the height and massing of the seniors apartment building in the centre of the 
parcel with the goal of mitigating any negative impacts associated with the height by stepping 
back the top storey from Richter Street. The concept also has a large majority of the street 
frontages lined with 2 ½ storey buildings. This Development Permit deals with the form and 
character of the seniors apartment housing project and the family oriented townhomes. Another 
DP will be submitted at a later date when the remainder of the property is sold and the 
developer is prepared to move forward with the project, this will involve approximately 50 units. 
 
Staff are supportive of the proposed development. While the project will result in a physical 
change to the neighbourhood new seniors and family oriented housing will be provided on site 
renewing an important form of housing. The existing structures are nearing the end of their 
lifespan and providing new housing options for seniors is an important objective of the Official 
Community Plan. A variety of influences impacted the project design. As mentioned, the most 
noteworthy being the housing provider’s operational objectives that influenced site design and 
unit layouts and the public consultation process that helped arrive at the least intrusive concept. 
These processes allowed the consultant to create detailed plans that also satisfy OCP objectives 
and design guidelines.   
 

4.0 Proposal 

4.1 Background 

The subject properties create a 1.26 hectare city block located in the North End bounded by 
Central Avenue, Cambridge Avenue, Kingsway Avenue and Richter Street. The non-profit 
Pleasantvale Homes Society has been operating 50 low income seniors’ housing units on most of 
the site for 55 years. The remainder of the block consists of two single family lots and the 
laneway owned by the City of Kelowna. There is one remaining single family lot privately owned 
that does not form part of this application, however the City does have an interest in working 
with the existing property owner to acquire the property. The Pleasantvale Housing Society has 
been investigating redevelopment opportunities to maintain the seniors housing stock for a 
number of years. In 2009 the properties were transferred to BC Housing to help the project move 
forward and achieve several key objectives.  
 
The block, which has long been designated for redevelopment in anticipation of new senior’s 
housing, is firmly surrounded by Single / Two Unit Residential designated properties. The project 
is located at the base of Knox Mountain Park and near Sutherland Bay in an ideal residential 
location where residents would continue to have convenient access to park amenities in a quiet 
residential setting. One of the properties in the block is under private ownership and will not be 
rezoned as part of this application process. The one property that remains under private 
ownership would ideally be consolidated into the project at some point in the future to provide 
for a more comprehensive approach to redevelopment. The RM5 portion of the project can 
proceed as it does not involve this property, the RM3 layout would be adjusted accordingly at a 
later date. 

4.2 Project Description 

Upon completion the project will feature three different forms of housing organized into one 
comprehensively planned development. Surface parking is provided for the apartment building 
and the affordable townhome units while the market townhomes (Future phase) will likely have 

74



DP13-0048 / DVP13-0049– Page 4 

 
 

individual garages. One access point from Richter Street and an emergency access onto 
Cambridge Avenue will be provided for the BC Housing portion of the project and once access 
point will be located on Kingsway for the future market housing component. The key site 
planning characteristics include: 

 Except for a small portion of the Richter Street frontage the streets will be fronted with 
2½ storey townhomes; 

 4-storey apartment building is setback from north and south neighbours 

 Apartment building steps back after 3rd storey along Richter Street frontage; 

 Seniors’ building has a small open yard space to the south of the building. 

Site Planning 
The subject properties create a 1.26 hectare city block located in the North End bounded by 
Central Avenue, Cambridge Avenue, Kingsway Avenue and Richter Street. The site programming 
includes 50 affordable seniors units in a 4 storey apartment building, 20 affordable rental 
townhouse units directed at families in two 10 unit buildings and approximately 50 market 
townhouse units in a series of buildings (Future phase). Surface parking is provided for the 
apartment building, carports for the affordable townhome units while the market townhomes will 
likely have individual garages. Circulation has been handled entirely onsite and the each of the 
buildings are oriented towards the street helping to maintain the residential character of the 
area. The senior’s apartment building has been strategically located with the bulk of the building 
surrounded by townhomes and the fourth storey stepped back to reduce the massing along 
Richter Street.                  
 
Architectural Design  
The project follows a more traditional design scheme in an attempt to achieve a better 
relationship to the North End aesthetic. The blue horizontal Hardie plank is matched with an off-
white uniform Hardie panel, the main vertical elements consist of heavy timber structural details 
that support the balconies. The Richter Street frontage is the primary entrance for the seniors’ 
housing component and therefore has the most design detail.   
 
Two minor variances have been proposed, the project compares to Zoning Bylaw No. 8000 as 
follows: 
 

Zoning Analysis Table 

CRITERIA RM5 ZONE REQUIREMENTS RM5 PROPOSAL 

Development Regulations 
Floor Area Ratio 1.1 0.91 

Height 18.0m / 4.5 Storeys 13.0m / 4 Storeys 

Front Yard 
6.0m 

3.0m entry projection 
6.0m 

1.8m entry projection* 

Side Yard (south) Townhouse 1.5m 1.5m 

Side Yard (north) 4.5m 1.5m 

Rear Yard 9.0m 17.9m 

Site Coverage 
 

Buildings - 40% 
Total - 65% 

31% 
65.7%* 

Other Regulations 
Min. Parking Required 51 stalls 57 stalls 

Bicycle Parking 
Class I: 35 spaces 
Class II: 7 spaces 

Class I: 35 spaces 
Class II: 7 spaces 

75



DP13-0048 / DVP13-0049– Page 5 

 
 

* Vary permitted projection into a entrance canopy from 3.0m permitted to 1.8m proposed. 

* Vary the site coverage for buildings, driveways and parking from 65% permitted to 65.7% proposed.  

4.3 Site Context 

The subject property is located in the North End area of town in a predominantly single family 
neighbourhood. Adjacent land uses are as follows: 

Orientation Zoning Land Use 

North RU6 – Two Dwelling Housing Residential 

East RU6 – Two Dwelling Housing Residential 

South RU6 – Two Dwelling Housing Residential 
West RU6 – Two Dwelling Housing Residential 

 

Subject Property Map:  

 

5.0 Current Development Policies - Kelowna Official Community Plan 2030 (OCP) 

5.1 Urban Design Development Permit Areas (Chapter 14)  
 
Intensive Residential - Character Neighbourhood Design Guidelines 
Objectives 

76



DP13-0048 / DVP13-0049– Page 6 

 
 

 Preserve and enhance the scale and character of individual neighbourhoods and 
streetscapes; 

 Ensure compatibility with existing dwellings on a lot or with surrounding properties; 

 Promote a high standard of design, construction and landscaping; 

 Encourage building and landscape designs that promote privacy, safety, and accessibility; 

 Contribute to the creation of pedestrian oriented streets; and 

 Design for livability. 
 
Guidelines - Site and Context Considerations 

 Design projects to reflect the established character of the neighbourhood through similar: 
o building spacing, massing, setbacks, scale, foundation height, rooflines, building 

height, building materials, proportion, landscaping, wall to window/door ratio, 
architectural themes/detailing 

 Design buildings to limit the height difference between adjacent properties (i.e., step 
back upper floors, slope roofs towards side yards); 

 Ensure multiple unit residential development is consistent in architectural style with the 
original development or the dominant style of the block; 

 Articulate front facades to create depth and architectural interest (i.e., variations in 
height, detailing and massing); 

 Incorporate an equal level and quality of design and architectural details on all street 
facing elevations (corner and double fronting lots); 

 Maintain and establish front yard setbacks by placing additions and new constructions 
within 10% of the adjacent or average building setback; 

 Rear setbacks may vary from the established pattern, to accommodate additions to the 
building footprint; 

 Locate developments to minimize the amount of shadow cast onto the private open space 
of adjacent properties; 

 Site buildings on the lot to maximize usable and private outdoor space; 

 All front yards should be landscaped with a variety of trees, shrubs, flower beds or other 
landscape materials; 

 Fences, hedges and landscaping should be used to help screen views of private open 
spaces on adjacent residential properties; 

 Retain existing, healthy, mature trees and vegetation both on site and adjacent to the 
street (including those with special character or historical and cultural significance); 

 Respect the privacy of adjacent properties through appropriate placement of windows, 
location of decks, and any other feature that may infringe upon the privacy of a 
neighbouring residence; 

 Locate parking and garages within the rear yard with direct access from the lane. On 
properties which do not abut a lane, locate parking within the rear yard with driveway 
access from the street; 

 Avoid garages incorporated into buildings at the front of the structure; 

 Locate garages so they do not protrude beyond the front elevation and where possible, 
garage entrances should face away from the street; 

 Minimize the width and area of driveways and impervious surfaces; 

 Utilize pervious paving materials for driveways and parking areas (i.e., grasscrete or 
narrow wheel lanes with planting in the middle); 

 Ensure all parking is screened from public view or contained within the structure. 
 
Form and Character 

77



DP13-0048 / DVP13-0049– Page 7 

 
 

 Maintain and complement established massing of the streetscape (i.e., design buildings 
with massing setback from the street or utilize architectural treatments to soften the 
massing); 

 Massing of accessory buildings should be subordinate to the massing of the principle 
building; 

 Maintain the exterior appearance of a single family structure if it is converted to multiple 
unit housing; 

 Ensure the same level of architectural detailing continues from the front elevations 
around to the midpoint of the side elevation or to the nearest articulated element; 

 Incorporate colours similar to the traditional tones for the building’s architectural style; 

 Incorporate high quality, low maintenance roofing and building materials similar to 
traditional materials; 

 Incorporate a mixture of building materials to enhance visual appeal and building design; 

 Avoid flat, monotonous facades with entry features and porches as the dominant feature 
facing the street; 

 Entrances should adhere to the pattern of established architectural style. 

6.0 Technical Comments 

6.1 Building & Permitting Department 

 Demolition permits are required for any existing building(s). 

 Development Cost Charges (DCC’s) are required to be paid prior to issuance of any 
Building Permit(s) for new construction. 

 This is an area with a potentially high ground water table, a geotechnical engineer will 
be required to establish a safe building elevation and safe bearing capacities. 

 Full Plan check for Building Code related issues will be done at time of Building Permit 
applications. 

6.2 Development Engineering Department 

Addressed as part of Z13-0018. 

6.3 Fire Department 

Fire department access, fire flows, and hydrants as per the BC Building Code and City of 
Kelowna Subdivision Bylaw #7900. The Subdivision Bylaw #7900 requires a minimum of 
150ltr/sec fire flows. Primary emergency access is from Richter St. Additional comments 
will be required at the building permit application. 

6.4 Fortis BC – Gas 

FortisBC gas division has reviewed the above mentioned referral and there is an existing 
60mm DP gas main running down the lane will need to abandoned/altered/renewed to 
accommodate proposed new structures. Right-of-way may also be required. 

7.0 Application Chronology  

Date of Application Received: April 14th, 2013  
Zone Amending Public Hearing: July 16th, 2013 
Zoning Conditions Addressed: July 4th, 2014 
 

78



DP13-0048 / DVP13-0049– Page 8 

 
 

 
 

Report prepared by: 

     
Alec Warrender, Land Use Planner  
 
 

Reviewed by:    Ryan Smith, Urban Planning Manager 
 

Approved for Inclusion:   D. Gilchrist, Divisional Director – 
 Community Planning & Real Estate 
 
 
 

Attachments: 

Subject Property Map 
Site Plan 
Conceptual Elevations 
Landscape Plan 
Applicant’s Letter of Rationale 
 
 

79



80



81



82



83



84



85



86



87



88



89



90



91



92



93



94



95



96



97



98



99



100



101



102



103



104



105



106



107



108



109



110



 

 

CITY OF KELOWNA 
 
APPROVED ISSUANCE OF A: 
 

 Development Permit No.:  DP13-0048 / DVP13-0049 

 
EXISTING ZONING DESIGNATION: 
 
 
WITHIN DEVELOPMENT PERMIT AREA: 
 
DEVLOPMENT VARIANCE PERMIT: 
 

 
RM3 – Low Density Multiple Housing & RM5 – Medium Density Multiple 
Housing  
 
Revitalization Development Permit Area 
 
Vary the permitted entrance canopy projection from 3.0m to 1.8m 
proposed. 
Vary the site coverage from 65% permitted to 65.7% proposed for 
buildings, driveways and parking areas. 

 

 
ISSUED TO:         Norr Architects Planners 
 
LOCATION OF SUBJECT SITE:        602-650, 678, 668 Central Avenue  

648-650, 668-670, 680-692  Richter Street 
603-607, 609-611, 621-631, 661-663, 671-673, 681-689, 641 Cambridge Avenue 

 

 LOT DISTRICT LOT TWP DISTRICT PLAN 

 
LEGAL 
DESCRIPTION: 

1, 2, 3, 4, 13, 14 9  ODYD 4317 

A 9  ODYD 13927 

1, 2, 3, 4, 5, 6 9  ODYD 7822 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

SCOPE OF APPROVAL 
 
This Permit applies to and only to those lands within the Municipality as described above, and any and all buildings, 
structures and other development thereon. 
 
This Permit is issued subject to compliance with all of the Bylaws of the Municipality applicable thereto, except as 
specifically varied or supplemented by this Permit, noted in the Terms and Conditions below. 
 
Applicants for a Heritage Alteration Permit should be aware that the issuance of a Permit limits the applicant to be 
in strict compliance with regulations of the Zoning Bylaw or Subdivision Control Bylaw unless specific Variances have 
been authorized by the Permit.  No implied Variances from bylaw provisions shall be granted by virtue of drawing 
notations which are inconsistent with bylaw provisions and which may not have been identified as required Variances 
by the applicant or City staff. 

 
1. TERMS AND CONDITIONS: 

 
1. The dimensions and siting of the building to be constructed on the land be in general accordance with 

Schedule "A"; 
 

2. The exterior design and finish of the building to be constructed on the land be in general accordance with 
Schedule "B"; 

 
3. Landscaping to be provided on the land be in general accordance with Schedule "C"; 

 
AND THAT variances to the following sections of Zoning Bylaw No. 8000 be granted: 

 
Section 6.4.3 Projections Into Yards 
Vary the permitted entrance canopy projection from 3.0m to 1.8m proposed. 

 

111



- 2 - 
DP13-0048 / DVP13-0049 

 

Section 13.11.6 (b) Site Coverage 
Vary the site coverage from 65% permitted to 65.7% proposed for buildings, driveways and parking areas. 
 

2. The development shall commence by and in accordance with an approved Building Permit within ONE YEAR of 

the date of the Municipal Council authorization resolution. 
 
3. DEVELOPMENT: 
 
 The land described herein shall be developed strictly in accordance with the terms and conditions and 

provisions of this Permit and any plans and specifications attached to this Permit which shall form a part 
hereof. 

 
 If the Permittee does not commence the development Permitted by this Permit within one year of the date of 

this Permit, this Permit shall lapse. 
 
 This Permit is not transferrable unless specifically Permitted by the Municipality.  The authorization to transfer 

the Permit shall, if deemed acceptable, be granted by Council resolution. 
 
 THIS Permit IS NOT A BUILDING Permit. 
 
3. PERFORMANCE SECURITY: 
 
 As a condition of the issuance of this Permit, Council is holding the security set out below to ensure that 

development is carried out in accordance with the terms and conditions of this Permit.  Should any interest be 
earned upon the security, it shall accrue to the Permittee and be paid to the Permittee if the security is 
returned.  The condition of the posting of the security is that should the Permittee fail to carry out the 
development hereby authorized, according to the terms and conditions of this Permit within the time provided, 
the Municipality may use the security to carry out the work by its servants, agents or contractors, and any 
surplus shall be paid over to the Permittee, or should the Permittee carry out the development Permitted by 
this Permit within the time set out above, the security shall be returned to the Permittee.  There is filed 
accordingly: 

 
 (a) Cash in the amount of $                 N/A                           . 
 (b) A Certified Cheque in the amount of $                  N/A                         . 
 (c) An Irrevocable Letter of Credit in the amount of $            TBD              . 
 
 Before any bond or security required under this Permit is reduced or released, the Developer will provide the 

City with a statutory declaration certifying that all labour, material, workers' compensation and other taxes 
and costs have been paid. 

 
5. APPLICANT'S AGREEMENT: 
 
 I hereby declare that all the above statements and the information contained in the material submitted in 

support of this Permit are to the best of my belief, true and correct in all respects.  Upon issuance of the 
Permit for me by the Municipality, then in such case, I covenant and agree to save harmless and effectually 
indemnify the Municipality against: 

 
 (a) All actions and proceedings, costs, damages, expenses, claims, and demands whatsoever and by 

whomsoever brought, by reason of the Municipality granting to me the said Permit. 
 
 (b) All costs, expenses, claims that may be incurred by the Municipality if the construction by me of 

engineering or other types of works as called for by the Permit results in damages to any property 
owned in whole or in part by the Municipality or which the Municipality by duty or custom is obliged, 
directly or indirectly in any way or to any degree, to construct, repair, or maintain. 

 
 I further covenant and agree that should I be granted a Development Permit or Development Variance Permit, 

the Municipality may withhold the granting of any occupancy Permit for the occupancy and/or use of any 
building or part thereof constructed upon the hereinbefore referred to land until all of the engineering works 
or other works called for by the Permit have been completed to the satisfaction of the Municipal Engineer and 
Director of Planning & Development Services. 

 

112



- 3 - 
DP13-0048 / DVP13-0049 

 

Should there be any change in ownership or legal description of the property, I undertake to notify the Land Use 
Management Departmant immediately to avoid any unnecessary delay in processing the application. 
 
 
I HEREBY UNDERSTAND AND AGREE TO ALL THE TERMS AND CONDITIONS SPECIFIED IN THIS PERMIT. 
 
 
 
 
_____________________________________________ 
Signature of Owner/Authorized Agent 
 
 
 
 
______________________________________________ 
Print Name in Bold Letters 
 

______________________________________________ 
Date 
 
 
 
 
______________________________________________ 
Telephone No. 
 

 
 
 
5. APPROVALS: 
 

 
DEVELOPMENT PERMIT & DEVELOPMENT VARIANCE PERMIT AUTHORIZED BY THE COUNCIL ON THE 29th DAY OF JULY, 
2014 
 

ISSUED BY THE DIVISIONAL DIRECTOR OF COMMUNITY PLANNING AND REAL ESTATE OF THE CITY OF KELOWNA THE  

___TH DAY OF JULY, 2014. 

 

 

 

__________________________________________________ 
Doug Gilchrist, Divisional Director 
Community Planning & Real Estate 
 

113



REPORT TO COUNCIL 
 
 
 

Date: July 29, 2014 

RIM No. 0940-43 

To: City Manager 

From: Urban Planning Department (RS) 

Application: TUP14-0003 Owner: 
Interior Health/ 

City of Kelowna 

Address: 2284/2292 Speer Street Applicant: 
PCL Constructors West Coast 
Inc. 

Subject: Temporary Use Permit  

Existing OCP Designation: Health District (HD) 

Existing Zone: RU6 – Two Dwelling Housing 

 

1.0 Recommendation 

THAT Council authorize Temporary Use Permit No. TUP14-0003 to allow the use of the subject  
property for Contractor Service, General for Lots A and B, District Lot 14, ODYD, Plan EPP28861, 
located at 2284 and 2292 Speer Street, Kelowna, BC, for a two (2) year period commencing from 
July 29, 2014. 

2.0 Purpose  

To seek a Temporary Use Permit to allow the vacant residential properties to be used for 
Contractor Services, General in support of Kelowna General Hospital construction projects. 

3.0 Urban Planning Department 

Staff recommend that Council support this Temporary Use Permit Application. Kelowna General 
Hospital is major regional Health Care provider and the KGH campus has been in a near constant 
state of construction for the last 8 years. Changes to construction phasing have made it very 
difficult for PCL to maintain the onsite contractor services portion of their operation on the KGH 
site. Given the close proximity of the subject properties to the KGH precinct, PCL, Interior 
Health and the City have agreed that they may make a viable temporary alternative to an on-site 
location. Staff note that advantages of these sites include: 

 The proposed Temporary Use is occurring on lands that are designated for Future Health 
District expansion. 

114



TUP14-0003 – Page 2 

 
 

 Interior Health Authority owns the property directly to the north of the subject 
properties. 

 PCL have been been proactive and cooperative with the City of Kelowna and Interior 
Health in their approach to managing construction operations and impacts.  

 Short duration (2 years) of Temporary Use Permit gives staff and Council the assurance 
that the proposed use will not impact the area for an extended period of time. 

4.0 Proposal 

4.1 Background 

The southerly of the two subject properties (2292 Speer Street) was purchased by the City of 
Kelowna as part of a long term plan to re-align Rose Avenue to the north. The northerly of the 
two subject properties is owned by Interior Health (as well as several other properties to the 
north). Interior Health has proposed to lease the City’s property at 2292 Speer until the eventual 
road construction occurs. At that time, they will likely purchase any remaining land from the City 
to consolidate with their land holdings.  

The subject properties are currently zoned RU6 – Two Dwelling Housing. Interior Health is seeking 
to sublease both properties to PCL Constructors who are currently constructing the new Interior 
Heart and Surgical Centre on the Kelowna General Hospital Campus. Due to the complexities of 
construction staging and the absence of appropriate space on the KGH site, PCL is proposal to use 
the subject properties for construction staging/parking purposes (Contractor Services, General) 
for a period of approximately one year. The Temporary Use Permit will give PCL two years for 
temporary use of the property with an additional 3 year option should it be necessary (and 
supported by Council).  

4.2 Site Context 

The subject properties are located on the southwest end of Speer Street, north of Rose Avenue. 
Both properties are within the area identified in Kelowna’s Official Community Plan as the Health 
District. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

115



TUP14-0003 – Page 3 

 
 

 
 
 

Subject Property Map:   2284, 2292 Speer Street 
 

 
 
 
Adjacent land uses are as follows: 

Orientation Zoning Land Use 

North RU6 – Two Dwelling Housing Future Health District 

East RU6 – Two Dwelling Housing Future Health District 

South RU6 – Two Dwelling Housing Future Health District 

West RU6 – Two Dwelling Housing Future Health District 

 

5.0 Current Development Policies 

5.1 Kelowna Official Community Plan (OCP) 

Chapter 4 – Future Land Use - Temporary Use Permits (TUP) 

The temporary use designation is intended to apply to operations that are temporary in nature 
and the designation does not in itself permit specific uses on the designated sites. Within these 
areas, Council may, by resolution, issue a Temporary Use Permit and specify the conditions under 
which the temporary use be carried on. Upon the expiration of a Temporary Use Permit, the 
permitted uses revert to those outlined in the City of Kelowna Zoning Bylaw 8000. 
 
The subject property has a future land use designation of Health District in the current Official 
Community Plan (OCP) and is currently zoned RU6.  The property is within the Permanent Growth 
Boundary. 

Subject Properties: 

2284, 2292 Speer St. 

116



TUP14-0003 – Page 4 

 
 

The application is for a Temporary Use Permit on the two properties to accommodate a 
construction site office during the remaining construction of the IHSC project at the KGH campus.   

The OCP allows Temporary Use Permits within “the Permanent Growth Boundary (PGB) on all 
lands designated in OCP2030 Commercial, Education /Institutional, Industrial, Mixed Use or 
Public Service / Utility.”  The OCP defines a Health District as “development that supports the 
operations of the Kelowna General Hospital or other health administration, health education, 
patient services or care facility operation. Other uses may include multiple unit residential uses 
consistent with the RM3, RM4 or RM5 zones of the Zoning Bylaw. Limited health and service 
related commercial uses as defined by the Zoning Bylaw may be supported.”   

This application is therefore consistent with the OCP’s Temporary Use Permit.  Also, since the 
application is for a TUP from  July 2014 to September 2015, it also falls within the maximum 
three year time limit for TUP. 

6.0 Technical Comments  

6.1 Building & Permitting Department 

Building Permit required for placement of construction trailers. 

6.2 Fire Department 

No concerns. 

 

7.0 Application Chronology  

Date of Application Received: May 27, 2014 
Date of Public Consultation:   To occur prior to Council consideration. 
 

Report prepared by: 

 

     
R.Smith 
 
 

Approved for Inclusion:  Ryan Smith, Urban Planning Manager 

 

Attachments: 

Subject Property Map 
Rationale Letter 
Site Plan 
Site Photos 

117



TUP14-0003 – Page 5 

 
 

 

118



119



120



121



122



123



124



125



126



127



128



129



REPORT TO COUNCIL 
 
 
 

Date: 7/8/2014 

RIM No. 1940-50 

To: City Manager 

From: Urban Planning, Community Planning & Real Estate (AC) 

Application: DVP13-0003 & DP13-0002 Owner: 
Geoff R. & Leanne M. 
Proteau 

Address: 1242 – 1244 Pheasant St Applicant: Graeme James 

Subject: Development Variance Permit and Development Permit 

OCP Designation: S2RES – Single / Two Unit Residential 

Zone: RM1 – Four Dwelling Housing 

 

1.0 Recommendation 

THAT Final Adoption of Official Community Plan Bylaw No. 10837 and the Zoning Amending Bylaw 
No. 10838 be considered by Council.  

AND THAT Council authorize the issuance of Development Variance Permit No. DVP14-0003, for 
Strata Lot 1, District Lot 137, ODYD Strata plan KAS1353 together with an interest in the common 
property in proportion to the unit entitlement of the strata lot as shown on Form 1 located on 
1242-1244 Pheasant Street, Kelowna, BC. 

AND THAT the variance to the following section Zoning Bylaw No. 8000 be granted: 

Section 13.7.6 (f) – Development Regulations 

To vary the permitted rear yard setback from 7.5m to 3.35m. 

Section 8.1.9 (c) – Off-Street Vehicle Parking 

To vary the off-street parking rear yard setback requirement from 1.5 metres to 0.85 metres. 

AND THAT Council authorize the issuance of Development Permit No. DP14-0002, for Strata Lot 1, 
District Lot 137, ODYD Strata plan KAS1353 together with an interest in the common property in 
proportion to the unit entitlement of the strata lot as shown on Form 1 located on 1242-1244 
Pheasant Street, Kelowna, BC. 

AND THAT the dimensions, siting, landscaping, exterior design and finish of the building to be 
constructed on the land be in general accordance with Schedule "A"; 

 

 

130



DVP13-0003 & DP13-0002 – Page 2 

 

2.0 Purpose  

The purpose of the Development Variance Permit is to vary the rear yard building setback and 
the off-street parking setback. The purpose of the Development Permit is review the form and 
character of a fourplex located at the subject property. 

3.0 Urban Planning  

The subject property is located at 1242-1244 Pheasant Ave (Z13-0002 and OCP13-0001) and the 
applicant has met their conditions for final adoption. The final conditions were: 
 

- pay engineering fees ; 
- adjust the driveway access to the satisfaction of the engineering department; and 
- develop a code compliance list that shows the necessary upgrades to meet the BC Building 

Code and an agreed upon construction value. 

The applicant has met their zoning and OCP conditions to allow final adoption of the zoning. The 
last items for consideration are the Development Variance Permit and the Development Permit. 
Staff support the proposed variances and Development Permit. The building was a legalization 
application; therefore the form and character as well as the building setback variances are 
confirming the existing situation. The variance for the parking setback is supported by Staff as 
this was agreed upon by engineering and the applicant as a reasonable solution to fit the 
additional parking spaces within the site. 

4.0 Proposal 

4.1 Background 

This property owner obtained a building permit to construct a duplex on the site in 1993.  In 
2004, Bylaw Services began investigating complaints of a four-plex on the site. The property 
owner has converted the building into a four-plex without the appropriate zoning or permits in 
place.   

4.2 Project Description 

The building is a side by side duplex and through the rezoning, the applicant has applied to 
legalized four units. The two storey building has entrances to the two main units through the 
front of the building at the main floor with access to the two upper units via side doors. Required 
parking will be achieved on site by developing additional spaces near the rear and side parcel 
lines. Private open space is provided on elevated decks for the upper units and on patios for the 
main floor units. The remaining property is landscaped with turf and fencing around the side and 
rear of the yard.  

Should a variance to legalize the rear yard would be approved, a Development Permit (executed 
at Staff level) is required to evaluate the form and character; however no exterior improvements 
to the building or landscape are being proposed.   

4.3 Site Context 

The subject property is located on the west side of Pheasant Street on the edge of the 
Dilworth/Glenmore/Clifton area of Kelowna. The site is located south of the industrial uses off 
Clement, and east of Northwood Retirement Resort located on Gordon Drive.  The surrounding 
properties are zoned as follows: 

131



DVP13-0003 & DP13-0002 – Page 3 

 

Orientation Zoning Land Use 

North I4 – Central Industrial  Various light industrial  

East RU6 – Two Dwelling Housing Single family dwelling 

South RM5 – Medium Density Multiple Housing   Private Nursing Home 

West RU6 – Two Dwelling Housing Single family dwelling 

  

4.4  Subject Property Map: 1242- 1244 Pheasant Street: 

 

5.0 Zoning Analysis Table  

The zoning analysis table is extracted from the Development Variance Permit and shows 
the requirements of RU6 – Two Dwelling Housing zone compared to the proposal at the 
time: 

Zoning Analysis Table 

CRITERIA RM1 ZONE REQUIREMENTS PROPOSAL 

Existing Lot/Subdivision Regulations 
Lot Area 800 m2 (corner lot) 802 m2 

Lot Width 22 m 27.4 m 

Lot Depth 30 m 29.3 m 

Development Regulations 

Max Site Coverage (buildings) 
 

40% 
Building Footprint: 253m2 

31.5% 

Max Site Coverage 
 (buildings, driveway and parking) 

50% 50% 

 Max Floor Area Ratio 0.6 
Total Floor area: 452.4m2 

0.56 

Max Height 9.5 m / 2.5 storeys 7.01 m  

Min Front Yard 4.5m to dwelling 5.18 m 

Min Side Yard (west) 2.3 m (2 – 2.5 storeys) 7.59 m 

Min Side Yard (east) 4.5m (flanking street) 7.62 m 

Min Rear Yard  7.5m (2 – 2.5 storeys) 3.35 m 

132



DVP13-0003 & DP13-0002 – Page 4 

Other Regulations 

Minimum Parking Requirements 
2 spaces/ 3 bedroom unit 

1.5 spaces/ 2 bedroom unit 
Total required: 7 spaces 

7 spaces provided 
(Garages are allocated  

to upper units) 

Min Bicycle Parking 
Class 1: 0.5 dwelling unit 
Class II: 0.1 dwelling unit 

Total required: 3 

No common Bicycle parking 
provided, however each unit has 
storage units where individual 

bicycle parking is 
accommodated. 

Min Private Open Space 
25 m2 per unit 

Total required: 100m2 

26 m2 per upper deck 
& patios provided under deck for 

ground level units 

 The applicant is seeking a variance to the required rear yard.  

6.0 Technical Comments   

Building & Permitting 

 Development Cost Charges (DCC’s) are required to be paid prior to issuance of any 
Building Permits. 

 Operable bedroom windows required as per the 2012 edition of the British 
Columbia Building Code (BCBC 12). 

 Full Plan check for Building Code related issues will be done at time of Building 
Permit applications. 

Development Engineering 

 See attached 

7.0 Application Chronology  

Date of Application Received:      Jan 5, 2013 

Report prepared by: 

     
Adam Cseke, Planner  
 
 

Reviewed by:    Lindsey Ganczar, Urban Planning Supervisor 
 

Approved for Inclusion:  Ryan Smith, Urban Planning Manager 
        
 
 Attachments:   

Subject Property Map 

Development Engineering Memo 

Development Variance Permit 

Development Permit 

 

133



134



135



136



137



138



139



140



141



142



143



144



145



146



147



148



149



150



151



152


	Agenda
	3. Minutes - July 15, 2014 Public Hearing.pdf
	3. Minutes - July 15, 2014 Regular Meeting.pdf
	4.1 Bylaw No. 10979 (Z13-0019).pdf
	4.2 Bylaw No. 10986 (TA14-0007).pdf
	4.3 Bylaw No. 10875 (OCP11-0011).pdf
	4.4 Bylaw No. 10876 (TA11-0010).pdf
	4.5 Bylaw No. 10877 (Z11-0069).pdf
	4.6 Bylaw No. 10984 (Z13-0030).pdf
	4.7 Bylaw No. 10980 (OCP14-0014).pdf
	4.8 Bylaw No. 10981 (TA14-0010).pdf
	6.1 2014 07 29 Report DVP14-0032 554 Leon Ave.docx
	6.1 2014 07 29 Attachments DVP14-0032 552-554 Leon.pdf
	6.2 Bylaw No. 10860 (OCP13-0010).pdf
	6.2.1 Bylaw No. 10861 (Z13-0018).pdf
	6.2.2 2014 07 29 Report DP13-0048 .docx
	6.2.2 2014 07 29 Attachments DP13-0048.pdf
	6.2.2 DP13-0048 - Permit.doc
	6.3 2014 07 29 Report TUP14-0003 2284 and 2292 Speer St .docx
	6.3 2014 07 29 Attachments TUP14-0003.pdf
	6.4 Bylaw No. 10837 (OCP13-0001).pdf
	6.4.1 Bylaw No. 10838 (Z13-0002).pdf
	6.4.2 2014 07 29 Report DVP13-0003 Pheasant St.docx
	6.4.2 Attachments Pheasant.pdf

